
SITE PLAN REVIEW TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM A 

CITY HALL, MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 
 

Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom  
(See below for more details)* 

 
 

2:00 PM May 2, 2023 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of minutes from the April 4, 2023 Site Plan Review Technical Advisory 
Committee Meeting.  
 

 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. The request of 238 Deer Street, LLC (Owner), for property located at 238 Deer 

Street requesting a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Section 
10.1112.14 of the Zoning Ordinance for provision of no on-site parking spaces 
where 11 spaces are required. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 125 Lot 3 
and lies within the Character District 4 (CD4) District. (LU-20-238) 
 
 

III. III. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_vLVQOS-uS0ilCr_RlxkGaA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_vLVQOS-uS0ilCr_RlxkGaA


SITE PLAN REVIEW TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM A 

CITY HALL, MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 
 

 
2:00 PM              April 4, 2023 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:                   

Peter Stith, Chairperson, Principle Planner; David 
Desfosses, Construction Technician Supervisor; Patrick 
Howe, Deputy Fire Chief; Shanti Wolph, Chief Building 
Inspector; Peter Britz, Environmental Planner; Zachary 
Cronin, Assistant City Engineer 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:            Mike Maloney; Deputy Police Chief, Nicholas Cracknell; 
Principal Planner, Eric Eby, Parking and Transportation Engineer 

  
 
ADDITIONAL 
STAFF PRESENT:          Stefanie Casella; Planner, Kate Homet; Associate 

Environmental Planner 
 
 
[4:47] The meeting began at 2:00 p.m. 
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of minutes from the March 7, 2023 Site Plan Review Technical Advisory 
Committee Meeting.  

 
[5:02] P. Britz made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. D. Desfosses seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
II. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. POSTPONED The application of Banfield Realty, LLC, (Owner), for property located 

at 375 Banfield Road requesting Site Plan review approval to demolish two existing 
commercial buildings and an existing shed and construct a 75,000 s.f. industrial 
warehouse building with 75 parking spaces as well as associated paving, stormwater 
management, lighting, utilities and landscaping.  Said property is shown on Assessor 
Map 266 Lot 7 and lies within the Industrial (I) District. (LU-20-259) POSTPONED 

 



Minutes, Site Plan Review Technical Advisory Committee Meeting on April 4, 2023        Page 2 

  

 
DISCUSSION AND DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
[5:10] P. Stith inquired whether the Committee should make a motion to remove the application 
for 375 Banfield Road from the agenda due to their continued postponement and need for 
readvertisement. 
 
[5:21] D. Desfosses made a motion to remove the applicant from the agenda. P. Britz seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
B.  The request of Thomas E, Marybeth B, James B, and Meegan C. Reis (Owners), for 

property located at 305 Peverly Hill Road requesting redevelopment of the property 
including the addition of two new dwelling units for a total of three units with associated 
site improvements. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 255 Lot 5 and lies within the 
Single Residence A (SRA), Single Residence B (SRB) and Natural Resources Protection 
(NRP) Districts. (LU-23-18 and LU-22-25) 

 
[5:30] P. Stith introduced this application. 

 

SPEAKING TO THE APPLICATION 
 
[6:00] Erik Sari (Altus Engineering), Charlie Hoyt (architect) and Jim Reis (property owner) 
came to present this application. 
 
Mr. Sari noted that there were a few changes noted to the plan including a sign that discourages 
truck access on one side of the road, a revision to the water line, a fire truck turning template and 
changes to the septic which will result in new septic tie-ins connected to a new field. 
Additionally, Mr. Sari received a new comment requesting the addition of a second tank so that 
each unit has its own tank. This update will be included in the new application being sent to 
NHDES. The new addresses will be 305, 307 and 309 Peverly Hill Road. The State confirmed 
that the new utilities in the conservation easement are not prohibited. 
 
[8:52] P. Howe mentioned that he was still not satisfied with the driveway access, noting it still 
seemed too tight. He noted that it should be at least 20 feet wide and should meet the turnaround 
requirements in Appendix D of the 2018 IFC Access Code Requirements. A discussion ensued 
about the ability of trucks to turn around on the property and what was needed to show this. 
 
[12:51] D. Desfosses asked that the applicant add the second septic tank to the plans and he 
would be satisfied. 
 
[13:11] P. Stith mentioned that he would like the applicant to remove the label of “ADU” from 
the plans because it was approved as three dwelling units, not an ADU. 
 
[13:25] Mr. Sari explained that having the ADU label was easier for septic permitting purposes. 
P. Stith responded that the Planning Board would not allow that label to pass. 



Minutes, Site Plan Review Technical Advisory Committee Meeting on April 4, 2023        Page 3 

  

[13:46] S. Wolph asked why the septic would not be rated for a two-family unit. Mr. Sari 
responded that it would have 50% more loading which captures a one-bedroom additional unit, 
which makes it below a 300-gallon threshold which makes it applicable to an ADU size. S. 
Wolph responded that this would not be acceptable by the Planning Board. 
 
[15:40] Mr. Hoyt noted that he had a conversation with P. Howe about how the new separation 
from the barn will be a fire-rated wall, although it is currently not detailed on the plan. That will 
be updated. He will double check the regulations to ensure it is needed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
[17:22] P. Stith opened up the public hearing. No one spoke. The public hearing was closed. 
 
DISCUSSION AND DECISION OF THE BOARD 
 
[17:42] P. Britz noticed that the turning template had shown fire trucks having to go over 
abutting properties. Mr. Sari mentioned that it was according to GIS which may be inaccurate. 
Mr. Reis noted that it is likely incorrect due to the location of an old rock wall which is around 
the perimeter which reveals the true property line. 
 
[18:43] D. Desfosses made a motion to approve the application with the following stipulations: 
 

1. A second septic tank shall be added to the plans for the other building. 
2. New turning templates will be reviewed and approved by the Fire Department prior to 

going to the Planning Board. 
 
[19:22] P. Britz seconded the motion. 
 
[19:33] S. Casella inquired whether there would need to be additional review by the State LCIP 
program if the driveway is widened for the trucks to turn around in the conservation easement 
area. P. Britz noted that they would need additional approval if it impacts the easement area. 
 
[21:04] The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
III. ADJOURNMENT 
 
[21:20] D. Desfosses made a motion to adjourn. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:16 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kate E. Homet 
Secretary for the Technical Advisory Committee 



 
200 Griffin Road, Unit 3, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Phone (603) 430-9282 Fax 436-2315 
 
17 April 2023 

Peter Stith, Technical Advisory Committee Chair 
City of Portsmouth 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

RE: CUP Parking Approval Request at 138 Deer Street, Mixed Use Site Development with 
Micro-Units 

Dear Mr. Stith and TAC Members: 

On behalf of 238 Deer Street, LLC, we submit the attached information to support the 
Application for Conditional Use Permit under Section 10.1112.141 of the Portsmouth Zoning 
Ordinance, filed herewith. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) may recall that this same 
project came before the TAC Committee in December of 2020 and January of 2021. The CUP 
submitted at that time was approved by the Portsmouth Planning Board on February 18, 2021. 
The approval was extended in 2022, however a second extension request is not allowed, hence 
the CUP application needs to be re-submitted and re-approved, with the request to confirm the 
calculated parking demand, before the TAC Committee.  
The 238 Deer Street project will provide much needed micro housing units to the Portsmouth 
downtown. This proposed new building will add 21 additional housing units, all under 500 
square feet in size. The units are shown on the attached Architectural Plan(s). The minimum 
parking required for this project is 7-11 spaces. Due to site constraints (a lack of space to get to a 
potential basement parking level), the only parking that could be provided would have to be at 
first floor level; which would not allow for a vibrant commercial first floor use. 238 Deer Street, 
LLC proposes to provide no on-site spaces. Pursuant to Portsmouth Ordinance Section 
10.1112.52, a conditional use permit may be granted to permit less than the minimum parking 
required, and that is our request for this project. The Site Plan approval has been extended, and is 
still valid, for the project. 
Section 10.1112.141 of the Portsmouth Ordinance States (emphasis added): 

An application for a conditional use permit under this section shall include a parking 
demand analysis, which shall be reviewed by the City’s Technical Advisory Committee 
prior to submission to the Planning Board, demonstrating that the proposed number of 
off-street parking spaces is sufficient for the proposed use. 

This application is unique in that the site constraints do not allow for any parking, however the 
requirement that the Technical Advisory Committee review the parking demand analysis, 
remains. 



Letter to TAC CUP Application; 238 Deer Street 2 4/17/2023 

This portion of the application will focus, exclusively, on the Parking Demand Analysis, which 
we ask the Technical Advisory Committee to set the parking demand at 7-8 spaces, as 
determined previously. In support of that number please find the attached Parking Demand 
Analysis for your review and comment. 
The following plans, showing the site and features from the previously approved site plan set, are 
included in our submission, for reference only: 

• Cover Sheet – This shows the Development Team, Legend, Site Location, and Site
Zoning.

• Existing Conditions Plan C1 – This plan shows the current site improvements on the
property.

• Site Plan C3 – This plan shows layout of the proposed features.
• Architectural Plans A1 and A2 – These plans show the proposed building floor plans.
• Architectural Plans A7 – This plan shows the proposed interior unit layout

We look forward to the TAC review of this submission and concurrence on the submitted 
parking demand. 

Sincerely, 

John R. Chagnon, PE 
CC: DTC Law, McHenry Architects, 238 Deer Street LLC 



 
200 Griffin Road, Unit 3, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Phone (603) 430-9282 Fax 436-2315 
 
17 April, 2023 
 
Proposed Parking Demand 
Mixed Use Site Development 
138 Deer Street 
Portsmouth, NH 
 

The purpose of this calculation is to identify the proposed parking demand under the Portsmouth 
Ordinance and other sources generated by the mixed-use site development at 138 Deer Street. 
Currently the property has a one-story building with one commercial unit. The proposed plan is 
to remove the existing structure and construct a 3-story building with first floor commercial uses 
and 21 micro-units above the first floor. 
In developing the expected parking demand Ambit Engineering considered the standard rates as 
outlined in the City of Portsmouth Zoning Ordinance under Section 10.1112.31 Parking 
Requirements for Residential Uses. Also, this application will look at demand based on ITE 
industry data, as a back-up. The parking demand, based upon the number size of the dwelling 
units in the buildings are summarized below: 
 

Parking Demand Portsmouth Ordinance 
 

Unit Size Parking Spaces Required # of units Parking Spaces Required 
< 500 SF  0.5 per unit  21  10.5 Spaces 
Visitor  0.2 per unit  21  4.2 Spaces 
    
Total required:   15 Spaces 

 
In the Downtown Overlay District, the number of required parking spaces is reduced by 4 spaces 
to 11 spaces. Based on the calculation there is an anticipated requirement for 11 parked vehicles 
with this project. U.S. Census Bureau information on means of travel for residence of 
Portsmouth shows that approximately 7.7 percent of Portsmouth residents travel to work via 
walking or biking and 1.4 percent of Portsmouth residents utilize public transit services to travel 
to/from work. We can assume that some of this population may not have, or need to have, a 
vehicle. Based on this data a reduction of 9 % in parking demand could be expected, thus 
reducing the actual demand to 10 vehicles.  



Page 2 Parking Demand Memo 4/17/23 

Parking Demand ITE 

In developing the expected Parking Demand Ambit Engineering considered the standard Parking 
Demand rates and equations published in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Parking 
Generation Manual, 5th Edition.  The land use category that best correlates with the proposed use 
is Affordable Housing (ITE Land Use Code 223). Please note that the ITE Rates are for peak 
periods of demand; the residential being 10:00 PM to 5:00 AM time period, where surrounding 
available parking is at its peak availability. The ITE rates vary from 0.16 per unit (off peak) to 
0.53 per unit (peak) for units in a city core, with an average of 0.33 spaces per unit. The parking 
demand, based upon the number of dwelling units in the building is summarized below for the 
Average Peak Period of Parking Demand: 

Parking Demand Summary - PROPOSED 

Peak Period of Demand 
Affordable Housing (0.33 / unit) 0.33 x 21 units = 7 vehicles 

Adding the Guest Demand (0.16 / unit – off peak) 0.16 x 4 spaces = 1 vehicle 

Total Parking Spaces required 7 - 8 vehicles 

It can be argued that guest parking is the on street metered parking or garage parking available 
in the downtown core area and is included in parking provided to all uses downtown. 
Given the location of the project in close proximity to the downtown (via pedestrian and bicycle 
accommodations), transit route availability, and with the availability of ride sharing 
opportunities, the ITE values are more consistent with the uses proposed. We submit that the 
Portsmouth Ordinance requirement is too high, and we propose that the parking demand for this 
building in this setting is 7 – 8 spaces. 
We hereby request that the Technical Advisory Committee recommended to the Planning Board 
that the parking demand for a Conditional Use Permit at this location be 7 – 8 spaces. 
We look forward to providing additional information to the Planning Board to comply with the 
other sections of the parking requirements. Please feel free to call if you have any questions or 
comments. 

Sincerely, 

John R. Chagnon, Project Manager 
Ambit Engineering, Inc. 
603-430-9282



2010 2020

Total Population 20,963 21,418
Total 

Households 10,647 10,676
Occupants per 

household 1.97 2.01
Total workers 12,148 12,548
Drove Alone 82.40% 73.58%
Carpooled 3.81% 6.91%

Public 
Transportation 1.44% 1.12%

Walked 5.14% 5.28%
Worked from 

Home 5.40% 11.16%
Other 1.81% 1.94%

238 Deer Street
Population Estimates for Portsmouth, NH









UP

UP

A32

A3

A3

A3

1

4

3

STAIR

STAIR

RETAIL

RESIDENTIAL LOBBY

ELV. MECH / MEP / FP / OTHER

ELEV.

DASHED LINE 
REPRESENTS EXISTING 
BUILDING FOOTPRINT

TRASH ROOM

65' - 10"

20' - 10" 20' - 10" 20' - 10" 3' - 4"

1'
 - 

6"
24

' -
 1

1"
59

' -
 3

"

1'
 - 

6"
57

' -
 4

"
26

' -
 1

0"

5' - 3" 60' - 7"

65' - 10"

DEER STREET

B
R

ID
G

E 
ST

R
EE

T

PU
B

LI
C

 W
AL

K
W

AY

PROPERTY LINE

46
-6

4 
M

AP
LE

W
O

O
D

85
' -

 8
"

COLOR LEGEND
CIRCULATION

COMMON SPACE

MECH / STORAGE

MICRO-APARTMENT

RETAIL

OFFICE

LA
N

D
 O

F 
30

 M
AP

LE
W

O
O

D
 A

VE
N

U
E

A15

1

A15 2

©  2021 McHenry Architecture

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"

Z:\Active Project Files\20062-238 DEER STREET\Dwgs\2-SD\238 DEER STREET - SD.rvt

FLOOR PLANS
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION, OCTOBER 2021

DEER ST. MIXED-USE BUILDING
238 DEER STREET

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
A1

McHA:    SM/RD/MG
10/18/2021

1/16" = 1'-0"1 FIRST FLOOR



DNUP

DN

UP

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.

496 SF

UNIT 1
201

470 SF

UNIT 2
202

495 SF

UNIT 3
203

500 SF

UNIT 4
204

495 SF

UNIT 5
205

461 SF

UNIT 6
206

499 SF

UNIT 7
207

490 SF

UNIT 8
208

HALL

DASHED LINE 
REPRESENTS EXISTING 
BUILDING FOOTPRINT

65' - 10"

20' - 10" 20' - 10" 20' - 10" 3' - 4"

1'
 - 

6"
24

' -
 1

1"
59

' -
 3

"

1'
 - 

6"
57

' -
 4

"
26

' -
 1

0"

5' - 3" 60' - 7"

65' - 10"

B
R

ID
G

E 
ST

R
EE

T

PU
B

LI
C

 W
AL

K
W

AY

PROPERTY LINE

85
' -

 8
"

DEER STREET

46
-6

4 
M

AP
LE

W
O

O
D

A15

1

A15 2

STAIR

STAIR

ELEV.

447 SF

UNIT 1
401

416 SF

UNIT 2
402

431 SF

UNIT 3
403

468 SF

UNIT 4
405

HALL

STORAGE

UTILITY

UNIT 1 DECK

UNIT 2 
DECK

UNIT 3 
DECK

UNIT 4 DECK SERVICE DECK

COMMUNITY 
DECK

13' - 3" 12' - 2" 19' - 3" 13' - 2" 8' - 0"

65' - 10"

8'
 - 

1"
18

' -
 8

"
49

' -
 4

"
8'

 - 
0"

1'
 - 

6"

9'
 - 

6"
11

' -
 2

"
5'

 - 
9"

19
' -

 0
"

32
' -

 1
"

8'
 - 

1"

8' - 0"

20' - 10" 20' - 10" 20' - 10" 3' - 4"

DASHED LINE 
REPRESENTS EXISTING 
BUILDING FOOTPRINT

65' - 10"

B
R

ID
G

E 
ST

R
EE

T

PU
B

LI
C

 W
AL

K
W

AY

PROPERTY LINE

DEER STREET

46
-6

4 
M

AP
LE

W
O

O
D

A15

1

A15 2

©  2021 McHenry Architecture

Scale:  1/16" = 1'-0"

Z:\Active Project Files\20062-238 DEER STREET\Dwgs\2-SD\238 DEER STREET - SD.rvt

FLOOR PLANS
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION, OCTOBER 2021

DEER ST. MIXED-USE BUILDING
238 DEER STREET

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
A2

McHA:    SM/RD/MG
10/18/2021

1/16" = 1'-0"1 SECOND AND THIRD FLOOR
1/16" = 1'-0"2 FOURTH FLOOR



©  2021 McHenry Architecture

NOT TO SCALE

Z:\Active Project Files\20062-238 DEER STREET\Dwgs\2-SD\238 DEER STREET - SD.rvt

INTERIOR CONCEPT / OWNER
INSPIRATION

DEER ST. MIXED-USE BUILDING
238 DEER STREET

PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801
A7

McHA:    SM/RD/MG
10/18/2021

EXAMPLE EFFICIENCY UNIT FLOOR PLAN - 400SF

EXAMPLE EFFICIENCY UNIT EXAMPLE EFFICIENCY UNIT

EXAMPLE EFFICIENCY UNIT

OWNER CONCEPT
PRECEDENT:
EXAMPLE 
EFFICIENCY UNIT


	5-2-2023 TAC AG
	SITE PLAN REVIEW TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

	4-4-2023 TAC MIN Kate's Draft
	DeerSt_238_TAC_5-2-2023
	Cover Letter
	Parking Demand Memo
	Plan Set
	Site Plan
	Floor Plans
	Concept Designs





